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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the President and Board of Trustees
Village of Rochester, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Rochester, Illinois (the Village), as of and for the
year ended April 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. ‘

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

-Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Village of Rochester, Illinois as of April 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. .



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary information
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economie, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Village of Rochester, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements

listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying financial information listed as “additional schedules” in the table of contents have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Hlinois

March 8, 2021



Village of Rochester, Illinois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Statement 1

April 30,2020
Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets and Deferred Outflows
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equIvAlENLS ......ccvvriervevinririverierimeen, $1,180,594 $1,729,540  $ 2,910,134
Restricted Cash ..o . 823 - 823
Receivable, net
ACCOUNLES 1uturerrrerererersereriissnsererenssrenissssessorenessessissmesssrssessssrens - 192,478 192,478
TAXES 1ouiviiesirierieniie et st st e ssr bttty 361,904 - 361,904
OhET wverivreicrenrinrirer e eresaee e re et e e ee 138,785 - 138,785
Prepaid EXPOnSeS.....ceeinrrercerreersesensrensessenissesssessmsssessssasenes 24,352 23.953 48,305
Total CUITENE ASSELS ..vvevererrericrirnererersisinreresneerenereesererereserns 1,706.458 1,945,971 3,652,429
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets :
Capital assets not being depreciated.........curevrorinveieinnnrenens 101,434 166,240 267,674
Capital assets being depreciation, net......c.cocvrevivevviersevenns 917,337 5,489,611 6,406,948
Total capital ASSELS .....covviiiiniierrerecennnnsaresesenanens 1,018,771 5.655.851 6,074,622
Deferred charges 7
CONNECLION TEES....cvvrrervemrrevrirereererrernerseresrersesssneriressssseneeserns - 115,273 115.273
Total nONCUITENE ASSELS .vvveverrvvrirerrrcrrrrersiermirrrirsneieson, 1,018,771 5,771,124 6,789,895
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions.......c.cccovevvvevinenereneeenen. 366,941 190,613 557,554
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS................... $3.092,170 $7,907,708  $10,999.878

(Continued)



Village of Rochester, Illinois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION, Continued

Statement 1

L April 30,2020
Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.........cwii e, $ 19,117 $ 72228 0§ 91,345
Customer deposits payable.........ociceeeniennnenneiineeses - 137,821 137,821
Accrued PAYIOLl ....ovvvveirierircinenreenisneseesmsennsssssessenresssnane 67,510 12,050 - 79,560
Accrued compensated absences payable.........c.covcnrierrieniierenn. » - 11,226 11,226
Accrued interest Payable ......vieeeveiineiei e - 15,111 15,111
UnNearned rEVEINUE .....cvvevrerirreierieremrererseesesissessirersesmsrsessesesresesees 361,904 - 361,904
Bonds payable, current portion........ceeveoreomnnnmemmerenseonnes - 105,000 105,000
Notes payable, current POrtion .........ceeeerremrnenerermnmiersenenieee - 67.908 67.908
Total CUTLent HABIHHES...c.vrvvesevreressersesscssseeessresrsnre 448,531 421,344 869,875
[ ’ NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
[ Bonds payable, net of current portion ........o.oeeiinnineeiinn. - 1,025,000 1,025,000
Notes payable, net of current portion ..., - 270,857 270,857
Net pension liability ..o, 450,882 225,133 676,015
Total noncurrent liabilities............... e _450.882 1,520,990 1.971.872
TOTAL LIABILITIES .......ccovvteriiiicernieesesiniennnssassersrersrssneeesens 899.413 1,942,334 2,841,747
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions.......cvcireeeinerncriernenenes 308,647 102,770 411.417
NET POSITION ~
Net investment in capital 8SSeLS....ccveveiviierrirmireienirereenieerenenns 1,018,771 4,187,086 5,205,857
Restricted for
Highways and StIEetS ... ..o iiinnimeeinienmenneereen. ‘ 209,651 - 209,651
ArbOretim Project..icnimiierrsiisrieireneresasisssssenens 1,751 - . 1,751
PUblic SAfEty...ccoviverersernrr s 823 - 823
Economic development .......co.eveverenviienrenerenoncenieniossnenens 198,429 - 198,429
UNEESICIE. v vveiesisnenisrereeerersscsenns e s eeesesasssnssessseerores 454,685 1,675.518 2,130,203
TOTAL NET POSITION.. ...t $1,884.110 $5.862,604  $_7,746,714
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,




FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

General government
Culture and recreation
Public safety......cmveenenes
Highway and streets
Economic development

Total governmental activities ..

Business-type activities:
Water utility
Sewer utility

Interest expense.........
Total business-type activities...

Total Primary Government

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Village of Rochester, Illinois Statement 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020
Net (Expense) Revenue
Program Revenues and.Changes in Net Position
Operating Business-
Charges for Grants and Governmental type
Expenses Services Contributions Adctivities Activities Total
......................... ($ 293,828) $ 34,655 $ 5228 ($ 253,945) $ - ($ 253,945)
( 111,796) 5,725 - (106,071} - ( 106,071)
( 795,080) 13,522 - ( 781,558) - ( 781,558)
......................... ( 268,728) - - ( 268,728) - ( 268,728)
................... ( _172.183) - - (_172,183) - (_172,183)
( 1,641.615) 53,902 5.228 ( 1.582.485) -~ ( 1,582,485)
( 881,683) 1,169,054 - - 287,371 287,371
(935,539 865,472 - - (70,067 ( 70,067)
....................... ( __51.,996) - - - (__51,99) ( __51,996)
( 1.869.218) 2,034,526 - - 165.308 165.308
.................. ($3,510.833) $2,088,428 $__ 5228 ( 1,582.485) 165,308  ( 1.417,177)
General Revenues:
Income taxes 362,845 - 362,845
Sales tax 118,635 - 118,635
Use tax 129,693 - 129,693
Property tax 621,764 - 621,764
Motor Fuel tax 136,130 - 136,130
Other taxes 332,402 - 332,402
Investment income 12,075 2,427 14,502
Miscellaneous 98,717 3,534 104,251
Total general revenues 1,812,261 7.961 1,820,222
Change in net position 229,776 173,269 403,045
Net position at beginning of year 1,654,334 5,689,335 7.343.669
Net position at end of year $1.884.110 $5,862,604 $2,746,714



Village of Rochester, Illinois Statement 3
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
April 30, 2020
Other Total
General TIF Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.........vvuevvevrrivevnerierenerens $ 773,689 $ 198,429 $ 208,476 $1,180,594
Restricted CaSh..uieiniiineeiiiiinresesresressessessesssaseesens 823 - - 823
Receivables, net
Property taxes ..o 361,904 - - 361,904
Other ovriveeeecireerecevereens et erees 127,844 - 10,941 138,785
Prepaid inSUrance........covereeeereeernenenersrennnes 24,352 - - 24,352
TOTAL ASSETS $1,288,612  $_198429  $_219417  $1,706,458
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
LIABILITIES
Accrued payroll ..., $__67.510 $ - $ - $__ 67,510
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes levied in current year ................ 361,904 - - 361,904
TaAX TEVEIIUIE .vvvecriirrerresnicreseieressreeseessesessneosees 7.587 - - 7.587
' Total deferred inﬂews of resources ........... 7 369,491 - - 369,491
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
OF TESOULCTES 1uvenrerrrireerieseesrsesseenseosssenne 437,001 - - 437,001
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable for prepaid items..........cevereennn, 24,352 - - 24,352
RESEHICTE vvovvvreererernrrirerisnsreserisiisseesrcsnssrones 2,949 198,429 209,651 411,029
ASSIZNEA ..oeevrrerierenire e - C- 9,766 9,766
Unassigned......coeerenmrermureserercesminersressasenessens 824,310 - - 824,310
Total fund balances......covvvenrirvererrsorerees 851,611 198,429 219,417 1,269.457
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUND BALANCES SL288612  S_198429  $_219417  S$1706458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




Village of Rochester, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
April 30,2020

Total fund balances - governmental funds

...............................................................................................

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental fUNAS ... s
Receivables applicable to governmental activities are not due and collectible in the

current period and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds......c.evveveviriierveeereinieneeennn.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

--------------------------------------------------------------------------

............................................................................

Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Net Position do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds. These activities consist of:

Net pension liability
Accounts payable

....................................................................................................................

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total net position - governmental activities

------------------------------------------------------------------------

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$1,269,457

1,018,771

7,587

366,941
( 308,647)

( 450,882)
( _ 19.117)

$1.884.110



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Village of Rochester, Illinois Statement 4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020
Other Total
General TIF Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds TFunds
REVENUES .

TAXES 1 everevriininrrcrrmer s eses srorens $ 641,180 $ 274,865 $ - $ 916,045

Intergovernmental........ocvcvvesrvereisrersrieererressenns 652,507 - 136,130 788,637

Fines and £EeS ..vviuviiniiionineiesissseesine, 30,097 - - 30,097

Licenses and permits ....coouovievnieiinniicnnnees 23,805 - - 23,805

TOLErest INCOIIE 1vvvvviviiesireerieeesresreeeressnecoreeres 7,838 - 4,237 12,075

MiSCEllANCOUS .ovvvvieernrireierseesrreresnrsnerereasessons 98,717 - - 98,717

Total IEVENUES...vviirrcisrvririiisreerisrmrserasneniens 1,454,144 274,865 140,367 1,869,376
EXPENDITURES .
Current operation
General gOVernment.....c.cueeveevecereererrennens 232,524 - - - 232,524
Culture and recreation.........eccvrurererveennnns 111,796 - - 111,796
PUblic SAfEtY ..vcverericerirerecerisnereenieissenenane 781,017 - - 781,017
Economic development ........ccerevurereeinnnn, - 172,183 - 172,183
Highways and streets ........couveversuresecens 223,945 - 20,322 244,267
 Total eXPEnditures........ererscrrrer 1349282 172183 20322 1541787
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ... 104,862 102,682 120,045 327,589
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

GIANES 1 vvvevivnreriirsi st csssestsnisnessersessessersnes 5,228 - - 5,228
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES............ 110,090 102,682 120,045 332',817
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 741,521 95,747 99,372 936,640
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR........... $_851,611 $_198,429 $_219.417 $1.269.,457



———m

Village of Rochester, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Total net change in fund balances - governmental fUndS........cocuiiiieeie e ersesseeneseens $ 332,817
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The following is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current year:
DIEPTECIAHION .vvvvrseveeeresssenessesesessesseseseesssesssseeseessessessssssssssesseessssssssesssssssseessssssseo ( 107,771
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
- reported as revenues in the governmental fund. This is the change in deferred revenue ......... ( 3,213)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. ........ocvenen. 7,943
Change in the net position - governmental ACtiVItIES .....c.verecrieriveiinee s $_229.776

" The réccom'ﬁrarnyiﬁgrib'tes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Village of Rochester, Illinois

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30,2020

Assets and Deferred Qutflows

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net
Deferred charges:
Connection fees

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Liabilities and Net Position
- -CUORRENT-LIABILITIES- - - — — - -

Accounts PAYADIS ...uverisiririisiie e

Customer deposits payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Bonds payable, current portion
Notes payable, current portion

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Notes payable, net of current portion
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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Statement 5
Water Sewer

Utility Utility Total
$1,185,564 $ 543,976 $1,729,540
75,204 117,254 192,478
14,720 9.233 23.953
1,275,508 670,463 1,945,971
166,240 . 166,240
2,317,500 3,172,111 5,489,611
- 115273 115.273
2.483.740 3.287.384 5771,124
95,291 95.322 190,613
3.854,539 4,053,169 7.907.708
48,158 24,070 72,228
137,821 - 137,821
6,025 6,025 12,050
5,613 5,613 11,226
15,111 - 15,111
105,000 . 105,000
21,298 46,610 67.908
339,026 82,318 421,344
1,025,000 - 1,025,000
18,379 252,478 270,857
112,570 112,563 225.133
1,155,949 365,041 1,520,990
1,494,975 447.359 1,942,334
51,362 51,408 102,770
1,546,337 498,767 2,045,104
1,314,063 2,873,023 4,187,086
994,139 681,379 1,675,518
$2,308.202 $3,554,402 $5,862,604
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Village of Rochester, Illinois Statement 6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020
Water Sewer
Utility Utility Total
OPERATING REVENUES :
Metered Water SAIES....uvcrrereerrreereeisiensincrssssesersimressssstsssreressrersrsrsrererenns $ 994,605 $ - $ 994,605
SEWEL SEIVICE wvuvrevsssirereresorersrnenesessssssierssesssssnisssesssnrsessesaresesisseresssssenes - 851,920 851,920
Water DONA YEVENUS ....vevirveriiererisisersinesrsairisinsesessinseesssessssessserssssssiens 155,369 - 155,369
CONNECLION TEES..11vrrverreresiseinrenrmsisirsrsisrissaes i sesesssssescseserssenssssesesesesons 6,465 150 6,615
Ponalty TOVEIUS uuuiviiiisicrnrrerisestitisenresssssisasissnsrasssstsasisssssssenes 12,615 13,402 26,017
MISCELIANEOUS....verrrrersrersasecersesesessersassnssasesnersssssssrissessarassesersarcaseresssnes 5,534 - 5.534
Total OPerating IEVEIUES .......vvrcrrerreerisrmerersrersnsisesssesssissesnsss 1,174,588 865472 2,040,060
OPERATING EXPENSES
WaLEr PUICHASEU. 1vuverirreersrenrereseininnrrrissinsesnssessersissssssisnresssess insesssens 405,783 - 403,783
SeWEr fIOW CHAIZES covvverrrrrerrerrerenrirnenessinresssne sresrsserssesmressrssesenessnns - 363,220 363,220
Salaries, taxes and DENetits .....ovievevrcnnrnis v, 196,527 191,111 387,638
Materials and SUPPLES..cerireriereriinienierersineensnssen o 28,579 8,963 37,542
GaS A1 O6Li.urucvrirrrenrenrerererenirenerisersrrosssennimissss e o essressnasenees 4,692 4,762 9,454
Depreciation and amortiZation ......eeeveeeinsissnmeererermsresssrsressssessen 87,711 164,944 252,655
Office supplies and GXPENSE......cwreerreerrmrerrerersememmsrsmnmiesssessrsissssseses 7,571 6,491 14,062
INSULBICE «voveveriereersronenrernsnorressressesssressessssseessnesienstsssessneerssnssessesrerssrenes 13,542 9,937 23,479
2,250 2,250 4,500
- 5513~ - 5,513 11,026
33,688 40,763 74,451
Computer MAMENANCE ..vviierviiciiiiis e sssssseserns ‘ 2,233 2,641 4,874
UNIOTINNS c1vevererirnrrrcerineresinsviens s ersseseesessssnseetstoressserssnesssssresssssens 1,281 1,246 2,527
TESHNZ v eurirerrarsserereersinsrarsareermreessiesessessressssssersarsssssresesetssossrosessassssesss 3,973 1,348 5,321
Utilities and telephon@.....ccververnrmmeasemiismsmsins i 7,019 26,462 33,481
DUt srceersninesesssssesresrernseseter et e bt ste s e e s saree e eroaesats s nsrse e resnenne 736 250 986
Publications and SUBSCIIPLONS ivuverieerreremererseemrmerersm s 90 90 180
Repairs and maintenance ......vevveeevreeieriernnnesnenmeniesssomermen 73,403 103,843 177,246
DIUZ SCIEEIUNG -..vvvereserreareserseressssrsrasressssessastissesssersssensssssressenrsnisreross 268 268 536
MISCEILANEOUS....c.crueencerererasrensrirrermminmmiissesressreiossorssssssensenssrasssssasssnenes 6,824 1,437 8.261
Total operating EXPENSes ..u.irersiineniieserememnennesimeesns 881,683 935.539 1,817,222
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS .....covvrvnreervveenimmimisisisinins 292,905 ( __70,067) 222,838
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
TNVESEMEIE ICOMIE 1uerrevrreerrrrreesrrorerirmsssremriissiesssisessesmnisisiresessseseresessasns 1,656 771 2,427
INLEIESE (EXPOIISE) vvvvererereerrarsrvressermissrsrsssessersassssnstssssssenssnssinasssmsssesens ( __43.573) ( 8.423) ( __51.996)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES) .. orerwrrmrerriemsrrssieressarins (__ 41917 ( 7.652) ( __49.569)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION......cccoovverirminiirenrmenssnonennsinssnesns 250,988 ¢ 71,719) 173,269
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.......cocovverenmrneeresseesseeasns 2,057,214 3,632,121 5,089.335
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR. ... $2,308,202 $3.554,402 - $5,862,604
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Village of Rochester, Illinois Statement 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020
Water Sewer
Utility Utility Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from cuStomers and USEIS......uvercireresniineerireressssnsennsseresseens $1,215,048 $ 929,585 $2,144,633
Payments for goods and SEIVICES ... mernivermmeieniinnmrssrnieseeseesesens ( 718,604) ( 586,836) ( 1,305,440)
Payments to employees and benefits ..., ( _200,718) ( 195301 ( _396.,019)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities......c.cvvvevvnee. 295,726 147.448 443,174
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital ASSELS ...eumrerurierrennermiverserinsammeiseessersareisesseresmensenns ( 31,498) ( 39372 ( 70,870)
Principal paid on revenue bonds and Notes......vvmeieiieersisesscvenenns ( 120,654) (  45,926) ( 166,580)
Interest paid on revenue bonds and N0LES ..vvrirecnrsiereeneneesssnn, ( __43.573) ( 8.423) ( __51,996)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and
related financing actiVities .....uvveeieverreereririeeisererinssensenenns ( _195,725) (_.93.72DH) ( _289.,446)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
INEEIESt TRCRIVE Lvuviitieinrrrie e rsiriseerinsennsseserss st ers st esnasars e 1,656 771 2,427
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 101,657 54,498 156,155
- CASH AND-CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ... - -1,083:907 - 489,478 1,573.385
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.....ccvusvvererens 51,185,564 $_543,976 $1,729,540
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) from OPErations ....cweervvurerieninsereesnnsissnsnens $ 292,905 ¢ 70,067) $ 222,838
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ,......eee e 87,711 164,944 252,655
Pension adjustment other than contributions. ..o seeeseeeeneriens ( 2,773) ( 2,775) ( 5,548)
(Increase) decrease in assets:
AcCOUNES TECEIVADIE 1vvvvveveeireiierereerirserersrereresiseissesessersssessesenns 40,460 64,113 104,573
(Decrease) increase in liabilities
AcCOUNS PAYADIE ....vvvrirrveivivrirvniresenis s seesesseens ( 119,894) ( 4,577) (124471
Customer deposits Payable .....crvevceiirisrvmecersensiarininsiuresinns 2,396 - 2,396
Accrued HabIlIIES ...oevrrwrrerrmrrriermrsrrinrreressrinsersirssnsssrssnenns ( 5.079) ( 4,190) ( 9.269)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities .......ocvereererirrireenns $_295.726 $_147.448 $_443.174
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Village of Rochester, ilinois (the Village) have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred
to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Village’s accounting policies are described below.

A. — Reporting Entity

The Village is a body corporate and politic established under Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The Village is considered to
A be a primary government as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, since it is legally separate and fiscally independent.

In evaluating how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. The decision to
include a component unit in the reporting entity is based upon the significance of its operational or financial relationship with
the primary government. The Village has determined that no other outside entity meets the above criteria and, therefore, no
other entity has been included as a component unit in the Village’s financial statements.

B. - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,

fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for

in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled. :

C. — Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information
on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and are
reported separate from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements,
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: “Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

D. —Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are intended to finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities. The Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal

period. Bxpenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, teleccommunications taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits,
miscellaneous revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual,
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Village.

_The Village reports the following major governmental funds: -

The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other fund.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to street improvements and
projects provided by motor fuel taxes received from the State of Ilinois.

The Village reports the following non-major special revenue funds:

The Capital Improvement Fund is used to account for contributions and specific revenues and transfers from other
Village funds and expenditures for various capital projects as the Trustees may designate,

The TIF Fund is used to account for the activities relating to the Tax Increment Financing District.
The Village reports the following proprietary funds, which are major funds:

The Water Utility Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses related to operating and maintaining the
Village’s water operations.

The Sewer Utility Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses related to operating and maintaining the
Village’s sewer operations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued on or before November 30, 1989, generally are followed
in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their

business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Village has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

D. — Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continuyed

Proprietary funds distinguish operatlng revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s

principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for water
and sewer sales and service. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative

expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is generally the Village’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. See the policy for use of resources in governmental funds,

E. —Fund Balances

Effective May 1, 2011, the Village adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a governmental is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources
reported in the governmental funds. In addition, GASB Statement No. 54 modified certain fund type definitions and provided
guidance for classification of stabilization amounts on the face of the balance sheet.

* Within the governmenfal fund types, the Vlllage s fund balances are reported in one of the foHowmg clasmﬁcatlons

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 1) not in a spendable form; or 2)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes, that is, when constraints placed on the use of
resources are either: 1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or

laws or regulations of other governments; or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action of the Village’s highest level of decision-making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Village removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to
previously commit those amounts. The Village’s highest level of decision-making authority rests with the Village’s
Board of Trustees. The Village passes formal resolutions to commit their fund balances, At April 30, 2020, the
Village has no committed fund balances.

Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the Village’s intent to be used for specific purpose but are
neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by: 1) the Village’s Board of Trustees itself; or 2) a body or
official to which the Board of Trustees has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
The Village’s Board of Trustees has not authorized any other body or official to assign amounts for specific purpose
within the General Fund. Within the other governmental fund types (special revenue, debt service, capital projects);
resources are assigned in accordance with the established fund purpose and approved budget/appropriation. Residual

fund balances in these fund types that are not restricted or committed are reported as assigned. Within these same
funds, a residual deficit, if any, is reported as unassigned.

Unassigned — includes the residual fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E. ~Fund Balances - Continued

It is the Village’s policy to consider restricted resources to have been spent first when an expenditure is incurred for which
both restricted and unrestricted (i.e., committed, assigned or unassigned) fund balances are available, followed by committed
and then assigned fund balances. Unassigned amounts are used only after the other resources have been used.

At April 30, 2020, the Village’s fund balance restrictions were for the following purposes:

Restricted purpose
Highways and streets $ 209,651
Arboretum project _ 1,751
Public safety 823
TIF 198.429

$_410,654

F. — Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual-budgets were adopted for all governmental and proprietary funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The budget is prepared by fund,

department, division and object for the general fund and the department/division level for other funds, and includes
information on the past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year, The proposed
budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body holds public hearings and may add to, subtract
from or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. The budget may be amended by the governing

body. The Board of Trustees approves all transfer amounts between departments for all funds. Expenditures may not legally
exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

G. — Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

H. — Capital Assets

Capital assets are not capitalized in the governmental funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital acquisition and
construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds. Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost
where histotical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital
assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The Village records all capital items, which are
individually greater than $5,000, with a useful life of greater than one year, as capital assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not

capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

H. — Capital Assets - Continued

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings : 40 years
Improvements 20 to 40 years
Equipment 3 to 7 years
Utility property and improvements 5 to 40 years
Infrastructure 10 to 40 years

I. — Investments

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at April 30, 2020. Non-negotiable certificates of deposit are
reported at cost.

J. — Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will

—_not be recognized.as an outflow. of resources until that time. The Village’s deferred outflows relate to-deferred amounts-to-be
recognized in pension expenses in future periods. This amount will be recognized over the next five years,

K. —Deferred Charges

Deferred charges include connection fees related to connecting the Village’s sewer system to the Springfield Metro Sanitary
District. The connection fees are being amortized over the life of the sewer extension project.

L. — Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave and vested sick leave are accrued when incurred by the Village in the government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of the proprietary fund is recorded as an
expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to employees.

M. — Deferred Inflows of Resources

The Village reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an
increase in net position that applies to a future period. The Village will not recognize the related revenue until a future event
occurs. The Village has two types of deferred inflows: net pension liability and property tax receivables recorded in the

current year, but the revenue will be recorded in the subsequent year, as it is meant to finance the next fiscal year, and will be
recognized in a future period.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

N. — Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other

long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statements of net position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognized bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Q. — Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the Village has numerous transactions between funds. Transfers are reported as

"Other Financing Sources and Uses" in the governmental funds, as "Transfers In" by the recipient fund, and "Transfers Out"
by the disbursing fund.

P. — Property Tax Calendar

_The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the Village: =

. The property tax lien date is January 1 of each year,
o The annual tax levy ordinance for taxes received during fiscal year 2020 was passed December 2018. ‘

° The first installment of property taxes is due to the County Collector in June and the second installment is due in
September of each year.

. Significant amounts of property taxes for 2018 where distributed to the Village in June and September of 2019.

The 2019 taxes are intended to finance the subsequent fiscal year and are not considered available for current operations and
are therefore shown as deferred inflows of resources. The 2019 tax levy has been recorded as a receivable at April 30, 2020.

Although the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1, 2020 the tax will not be levied until December 2020, and
accordingly, is not measurable at April 30, 2020.

Q. — Concentration of Suppliers

The Village has an agreement with the City of Springfield, whereby the City of Springfield will supply water to and process
sewage from the Village. The Village pays for actual water usage and sewage processed and is not required to purchase a
minimum amount of water or process a minimum amount of sewage.

R. — Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 2 — CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village’s Board of Trustees have adopted an investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by the Illinois Complied
Statues (ILCS), which authorize the Village to make deposits/investments in insured commercial banks, saving and loan
institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with
portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or agreements to repurchase these same obligations,

repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard
rating services and the Illinois Funds.

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest investment, return with the
maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Village and conforming to all state and local statutes
governing the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the overall portfolio. The

primary objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are conformance with legal requirements, safety of principal, liquidity
and return on investment.

A. — Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest

rates. Currently the Village has a policy to not directly invest in securities maturing more than two years from the date of
purchase.

___The average maturities of investments in Illinois Funds as of April 30, 2020 were less than one year.

B. — Credit Risk

It is the policy of the Village to diversify its investments to the best of its availability based on the type of funds invested and

cash flow needs of those funds, As of April 30, 2020, the Village is invested in a non-negotiable certificate of deposit.and
[llinois Funds. :

The Ilinois Funds (Fund) is an external investment pool authorized by the Illinois General Assembly. The Fund is exempt
from registering with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Fund is rated by Standard and Poor’s upon the request of
the Fund’s management. The most recent money market rating issued by Standard and Poor’s was AAAm. The fair value of

the position in the Illinois Funds is the same as the value of the Fund shares. Illinois state statutes provide the Illinois state
treasurer with regulatory oversight over the Fund.

C. — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the depository financial institution, a government
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-

dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of another party.

It is the policy of the Village to require collateralization on all funds held in banks or savings and loans above the insured
limits provided by the FDIC. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the
collateralization level will be a minimum of 102 percent of market value of principal and accrued interest.

As of April 30, 2020, $76,078 of the Village’s bank or investment balance of $2,990,437 was exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital asset for the year ended April 30, 2020 is as follows:

Governmental Activities

* Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Other improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated |

Less accumulated depreciation:
_ Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Other improvements
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Balances Balances
May 1,2019 Additions Retirements  April 30,2020
$_101.434 $ - $ - $_101.434
101,434 - - 101,434
1,217,596 - - 1,217,596
1,097,167 6,000 - 1,103,167
773,428 - - 773,428
383,740 - - 383,740
3.471.931 6,000 - 3.477,931
o T705 47Ty (28078 - (. T733,555)
( 997,306) ( 50928) - (1,048,234)
( 598936) ( 18358) - (617,294
( _151,104) ( __10.407) - (_161.511)
(2452,823) ( _107,771) - (2.560,594)
1,019,108  ( _101,771) - 917,337
$1,120,542  ($_101,771) $ - $1,018,771
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Balances Balances
May 1, 2019 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 19335 % - 3 - $ 19335
Construction in progress 207,607 27398 ( 88.100) 146,905
Total capital assets not being depreciated 226,942 27,398 ( 88,100) 166,240

Capital assets, being depreciated:

. Building 876,631 88,100 - 964,731
Water and sewer system 8,114,231 - - 8,114,231
Water tower 829,403 - - 829,403
Other improvements 6,578 - - 6,578
Equipment 393.692 43.472 - 437,164
Total capital assets being depreciated 10,220,535 131,572 - 10,352,107
Less accumulated depreciation:

_ Building (. BATID. (o 5817 - (. 740,594)
Water and sewer system ( 3,166,585) (  199,605) - ( 3,366,190)
Water tower ( 440,702) ( 20,735) - 461,437)
Other improvements ( 6,578) - - ( 6,578)
Equipment ( __268.883). ( 18.814) - ( __287,697)
Total accumulated depreciation ( 4,017,525y ( __244971) - ( _4.862,496)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,603,010 ( ___113.399) - 5.489,611
Total capital assets, net $.5.829,952 © ($___86,001) ($_88,100) $_5,655.851

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Village for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2020 as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government ' $ 5‘9,820
Public safety 31,609
Highways and streets 16,342

$__ 107,771

Business-type activities:

Water utility $ 87,711
Sewer utility 157.260
$_244.971
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Village of Rochester, Illinois

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Business-Type Activities

The Village has pledged future water utility revenue to repay $1,700,000 in General Obligation Bonds issued in 2013 for the

purpose of improving the Village’s existing waterworks system. The bonds are payable from the water utility revenue

collected by the Water Fund,
Total principal and interest payments
Total water revenue

$1,700,000 General Obligations Bonds
(alternative revenue source), Series 2013,
payable through December 2028, interest
is payable semiannually based on a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months,
principal payments paid annually.

Future principal and interest payments on general obligation bonds (alternate revenue source) are as follows:

w-— YearsEnding Aprit30;- - -~ - - — - - -Prineipal- - - --Interest—---

$_ 142,665

$1,174,588

$1.130,000

—-Total-——
2021 $ 105,000 $ 40,295 $ 145,295
2022 110,000 . 37,481 147,481
2023 115,000 34,214 149,214
2024 120,000 30,534 150,534
2025 125,000 26,490 151,490
2026-2029 555,000 57.436 612,436
$1,130,000 $_226,450 $1,356,450
In addition, the Village has a note payable for water tower repairs.
$127,000 (Water Tower) note payable,
quarterly installments of $3,687, including .
interest at 3.00%, through December 22, 2021, $_ 242854
Future principal and interest payments on this note payable are as follows:
Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 14,043 $ 512 $ 14,555
2022 10,811 106 10,917
$__ 24,854 $ 018 $_ 25472
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

The Village entered into a lease to own arrangement with John Deer Financial Service for a backhoe to be shared between the
Water and Sewer Funds.

$69,650 (Backhoe) note payable,
annual payments of $15,792, including
interest at 4.25%, through July 2021, $__29.644

Future principal and interest payments on this note payable are as follows:

Years Ending April 30, Principal ' Interest Total
2021 . $ 14,507 $ 1,285 $ 15,792
2022 15,137 655 15,792

$__29,644 $___ 1,940 $__ 31,584

During the year ending April 30, 2020, the Village borrowed $400,000 for the purpose of building a pump station.

$400,000 (Pump Station) note payable,
- —.— .. annual payments including- :

interest of 2.49%, through June 2026, $_284,267
Future principal and interest payments on this note payable are as follows:

Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 39356 $ 6,523 $ 45879
2022 39,782 5,517 45,299
2023 40,191 4,521 44,712
2024 40,605 3,514 44,119
2025 41,014 2,506 43,520
2026-2027 83,319 1,902 85,221

$_284,267 $__24,483 $_308,750

Following is a summary of the changes that occurred to the liabilities reported in the business-type activities of the Village for
the year ended April 30, 2020.

Balance Balance
May 1,2019 Increases Decreases  April 30, 2020

General obligation borids $1,230,000 $ - $ 100,000 $1,130,000
Water tower note payable 38,556 - 13,702 24,854
Backhoe note payable 43,549 - 13,905 29,644
Pump station note payable 323.240 - 38.973 284.267

$1,635,345 $ - $_166,580 $1.468.,765
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PLAN

IMRF Plan Description

The Village’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post-retirement
increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Village’s plan is managed by the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), the administrator of a multi-employer public pension fund. A summary of IMRF’s pension benefits
is provided in the “Benefits Provided” section of this note. Details of all benefits are available from IMRF. Benefit provisions
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements, detailed information about the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position, and required supplementary information. The report is available for download at www.imrf.org,

Benefits Provided

IMREF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law
Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the

Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants
after that date),

All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits, Tier 1

employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees
—whoretire-at-age 55 (at reduced benefits) or-after-age 60 (at-full benefits) with eight-years of service are-entitled to-an annual

retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of their final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of

service credited, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings.

Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 years of service,

divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after
ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with
ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of their
final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a
maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive
months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after
retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of:

L 3% of the original pension amount, or
® ¥ of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of December 31, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 10
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 11
Active plan members 18
Total ‘ 39
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Village of Rochester, Hlinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 5—- RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Contributions

As set by statute, the Village’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual covered salary. The
statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement
coverage of its own employees. The Village’s annual contribution rate for calendar year 2019 was 12.52%. For the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2020, the Village contributed $159,761 to the plan. The Village also contributes for disability benefits,
death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for

disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF’s Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by
statute,

Net Pension Liability

The Village’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2019. The total pension Iiability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at December 31, 2019:

..o The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal..

The Asset Valuation Method used was Market Value of Assets.

The Price Inflation was assumed to be 2.50%.

Salary Increases were expected to be 3.35% to 14.25%.

The Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.25%.

Retirement Age was from the Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition.

Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2014-2016.

e  Mortality —
For Non-Disabled Retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience,
For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale
MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees
Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that were applied for non-disabled lives.
For Active Members, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale

MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Morality
Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PI.AN - Continued

¢ The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
'in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. - These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage

and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table;

Long-Term

Portfolio Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Class Percentage of Return
Domestic Equity 37% 5.75%
International Equity 18% 6.50%
Fixed Income 28% 3.25%
Real Estate 9% 5.20%
Alterpative Investments 7% 3.60-7.60%
Cash Equivalents 1% 1.85%

Total ' 100%
. Single DiscountRate 7

A Single Discount Rate of 7.25% was used to measure the total pension liability, The projection of cash flow used to
determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions will be made at the current contribution

rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate-of return on pension plan investments (during the period in which the fiduciary net
position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit

rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for
use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is 7.25%; the municipal bond rate
is 2.75%; and the resulting single discount rate is 7.25%.
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Villagé of Rochester, Itlinois
- NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)—(b)
Balances at December 31,2018 $3,722,522 $2.,688.241 $1,034,281
Changes for the year:
Service cost 78,199 - 78,199
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 263,956 - 263,956
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability 66,193 - 66,193
Changes in assumptions - - -
Contributions — employer - 157,634 ( 157,634)
Contributions — employee : - 38,686 (  38,686)
Net investment income - 515,554 ( 515,554)
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions ( 241,702) ( 241,702) -
Other (Net Transfers) - 54,740 ( __54,740)
Net changes 166,646 524.912 ( _358.266)
Balances at December 31,2019 $3,889,168 $3,213.153 $_676,015

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 7.25% as well as what the
plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

Current
1% Lower Discount 1% Higher
6.25% 1.25% 8.25%
Net pension liability $1,148,969 $_676,015 $_288,715
p
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2020, the Village recognized pension expense of $159,761. At April 30, 2020, the Village
reported net deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred amounts to be recognized in pension expense

in the future periods
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 212,156
Assumption changes 9,932
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments ( _113,200)

Total deferred amounts to be recognized in
pension expense in future periods 108,888

Pension contributions made subsequent
to the measurement date 37.249

____ _Total deferred amounts related to pensions.

o -.$_146,137

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future
periods as follows:

Year Ending
December 31
2020 $ 49,754
2021 25,771
2022 51,103
2023 (35697
2024 17,518
Thereafter 439
Total $_108.888
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Village of Rochester, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NOTE 6 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. To insure against these losses, the Village participates in the Illinois
Municipal League Risk Management Association (IMLRMA), a public entity risk pool with transvers of risk. The Village
pays an annual premium to IMLRMA for its coverage. The Village has not had significant reductions in insurance coverage
during the year. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 7 - RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

Beginning around March 2020, The Covid-19 virus has been declared a global pandemic as it continues to spread rapidly.
Business continuity, Organization programs, and funding sources could be severely impacted for months or beyond as
governments and their citizens take significant and unprecedented measures to mitigate the consequences of the pandemic.

Management is carefully monitoring the situation and evaluating its options during this time. No adjustments have been made
to these financial statements as a result of this uncertainty,
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 3
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Employer Number: 06716R
Required Supplemental Information
April 30, 2020

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets ~--Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/19 ¢ 121,761) $ 688,559 $ 810,320 0.00% $ 859,692 94.26%
12/31/18 $ 209,621 $1,089,136 $ 879,515 19.25% $ 892,544 98.54%
12/31/17 $ 73274 $ 930,465 $ 857,188 7.88% $ 811,126 105.68%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2019 is $24,236. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be
3.52%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with Village of Rochester.
They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 100% funded.
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 4
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
TAXES
PrOPErtY oveveerrenvevennerrerersnssvonsd S S RPN $ 349,400 $ 346,899
Road a0 DIAZE...viiveisreriirnnriniiiisee e sssssess oo sseesssssessesesssetmenns 28,100 28,457
LY conseriirenereeiinnierssersssnerseeanastessreresasensiasssssesesssssasessessassesesssasssssessseesenssesasesnns 224,000 206,351
Cable tBIEVISION 1vvvveirriirriesinersrvesiessimrerssiniesesssssisesssssssessesessersssessssesssassessssressonsssosans 59.500 : 59.473
Total taXeS vvvriviirerinnnisrinreniens e e e eshera s ke Resanens 661,000 641,180
INTERGOVERNMENTAL :
TNCOME TAX 11vvvririrniereiiimieeseiiesiisersesserreer v ssressesisss i e sessssmssrsssssesesssssensnsssssssnsssanens 352,000 362,845
VIAEO ZAMING X .ovrrvrrerrrerrrrenresserinsrsssessssssenesessomssissssssssesseerssnssiesasssssesssasssrassesens 26,000 35,560
Sales tax........ e oYL e Rk re ROt e et dan RS T AR RT OO AR SR e Ao R eR R e oY et et ebeseheb et vt arersmerens 110,000 121,847
USE TAX 1ot vvrenimeeesenrrsnesesecisrerseteseantsraesssessessasssessstsssssssssssesessnesessssesessnsnsnsesssssesnsessassessns 103,000 129,693
REPIACEMENTE TAX 11rvvversivrinsririsisiincaserercersesirseesis s ssssiesissesessestesssssessessminse 1,900 2,562
Total INtErZOVEINMENLAL.....ccrririirrirerriereirererins e sseressssssmasacsessessemsesassesens 592,900 652,507
14,000 11,572
—--5000-- - - - 4,850~
1,600 1,340
Athletic field reservation fees 4,200 3,795
Athletic field electricity rembUISEMENT .....c.cviverriveiiisieresiereses i seeesissseeeseesresesens 500 590
DUI EQUIPMENE fINES.0u.ruiumrieniirissmisiisissssisaisesiseossnsisssissssssosiestsssssssessssessssssons - 1,950
GaS THANCHISE FBES 1vvvvrvrivicceiisiiriseniinresre st seseresesesensasseassesesesansassenesssessssssssesasesans 6,000 6,000
Other fINS AN FEES cvuviverrrvrvrrsrirerrirseirerenseeneass e sissesessessesssesssossssesersesensesesesasans 4,200 -
Total fINes AN FEES ..vviivirierimrorii s csnessesssesesssesssssesses 35,500 30,097
LICENSES AND PERMITS......oociririencnnimmerinriineinnissseniremessssseessssssesssesssosssons 15,200 23,805
MISCELLANEOQOUS :

‘ POLCE TECRIPLS cuuvvvrisvmsiisiirimsesisinsinncsesismsimssessisnsssssens st ssessvasssssessonsesssssessssnsssessassans 1,900 1,915
SCROOT SEOULILY vvvervrvevnuririisirctrrererersrere s sssseseressessessscesesessesssesenssesaresseesesessnsrssseess 4,400 3,787
July 4™ 1eVENUE .vvverrenrvnriirirneines SRS 2,000 13,789
Library :

Utilities relmMBDUISEIMEINLS «.vuuvevverervenreensiurerereniisiieessesessisstsssesessssesersasasessessrsessseses 3,800 2,542

Library maintenance reimburSementS. i orereeres veereererr e enrereanes 9,000 2,192

Library insurance reimbUISEINIENLS . . ..urvwerriuressirissmsernessmsmrsssisssssssssseneesessssessees 2,700 -

Traffic signal relMbUISEIEILS . .vveveirereriinere ettt ersereeesanas 8,000 6,475

Ice Deli lease payment.......cuveeceereenrennes e eeeer e ettt R bRt h et oo o r e e s et vannresreatene 1,000 -
Other MISCELIANEOUS 1.vvuirerimrerrrerimsiaresresssiisssnireieiesssssrsssossessssesssessssesesessssesesssans 50,600 68.017
Total MISCOLANCOUS....cvvvererreierenrirreinre et sttt er s esseneessersesssessenne 83.400 98,717
INVESTMENT INCOME.......covimisminrerinimmssisnisissisesserssssssnsssessssrsssssessssessssesessssssssssans 10,900 ' 7.838
TOLAL FEVEIIUIES...sivurveriasersriereneresnsserimnessesnseserssseeissseesssserserssseressssssseesssesssassas reveeeniennes 1,398,900 1,454,144

(Continued)
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Village of Rochester, llinois Schedule 4
SCHEDULE OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budpet Actual
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
BALAIIES oo rerreeerereerrrerinererer e et esse bt r bt esss st st et b seaesessessstene bt etes et ste e eereees $ 62400 $ 55,094
Health MSUTANCE «..uvvivrrrrirnmseerrnresessnessrsessssissssse s ssnsesse s snesseeessssssessesssssesersesseses 11,700 35,867
Other payroll eXpenditires ... .vu.vmirccinirries s 23,200 24,014
Travel and faiDING......ocviseeieeriemniimeeee s e seeeesrossesaeees 300 -
LEZAL TBS.110uirnireeriiiiireiiiienrrnienssiressninsesssises et sssessr st sesssesasassssesssessssessssessssesesesanssas 12,900 8,159
PrOfESSIONAL SEIVICES. 1ieurreerierrrirenriesrisrsinsinissisesseresssssssrseesasessesessesessesersmsessessnsassesons 16,400 31,689
Ordinance COMIICAtION v.ucuvivrrrinmenmimrri e ssesssssssessesesseres 4,500 4,500
Accounting and AUdItINg FEES .....uviiriirri e 5,500 4,725
Building and grounds Maiftenance ... i snesseesseseesssens 19,000 8,357
Utilities and telePhone ... e 16,500 23,851
Office EXPENAIUIES.....v.iiiririmiiitrsieer e rssssrsss s sesseas 5,800 19,488
GONEIAL INSULAIICE 111vveereecrererererirerssisieressserssierestressssnstssstersessassesesssessetssesssessessssssssssene 1,400 -
Computer administration and MaiNtENANCE .......ccvueerminsineieiinresr it seeees 700 3,168
Publications and SUDSCITPLIONS....uiriicerimeeirermseeseseeseseressressassessesessssessssesssssssssssosses 1,300 662
DIUBS 11 eisitinsncsirinnesesesersrmssssessassstssnsiassssessrssrsssesssssirsssssossstessssesssssssssossasessessenesasasaeseses 300 150
2,000 65
300 337
800 -
- — T 12;7000 - 12,398
Total general GOVEINMENT ...c..erivieenrernenereriesensessessenirsssesenees TN _197.700 232.524
CULTURE AND RECREATION \
SAIATIES .11t irresissesrser e iribe e st ssssen s s s sttt b s et b e bt n e e e et e nene 49,000 54,588
Building and grounds maintenance ........cc.euroiemmmmnmsnemriisrsssissesssesesssneses 3,800 2,186
Program eXpenditiIes ... sy s rresss s ssene st sesessesssseses 2,500 2,500
FOUITI O JULY ...ttt sers e eresesstsereresssssssesessesasassssesans 1,500 18,190
Vehicle and equipment MaIMTENAICE ..o vuvivevriresierreresreserereesessesessreressssesresssssssseseses 9,500 5,976
GAS AN Ol .1uuiviiriseereescrerssen e et ab b et esb s ese s e b esbesess s ersenaeae 4,900 4,445
Uniforms and SUPPLES ...vu.veusiveissrississsissieeseersmenisssmiessimsssssssssesssssssssssssssosssssessacses 100 545
OPELANG SUPPLES covrvrrerereiririsissreisissievessesesisssessssesssessssossssstsssesessessssessssssessssonsssrses 2,500 4,360
DIUZ SCIEEIINE v vuuivireissrarsesssiscasiininiesstsassssassasssssssssssessissestesssosssestssssessosteeseesaseseens 200 68
POLtADIE SANIEALION cvuverrvviriireenisreiiriiierineesrirsssssissssesssessetersesseesssosssssessssesesssssrsssssseses 3,500 3,400
PaIK IMPIOVEINENLS ..vvivseirsecscrneermssmresessssrsrissssesssasesssssiassssessesssssesssessesssnssesssensanens 11,200 1,162
UHIEIES 1vvuivsnseresiscrsnisaeserssnsssesessesessessssestsbarsssses s ssasss e ssonsssseessomssnsscsessessesseses 13,800 10,947
MISCEHANEOUS ¢.vvvvvrererrisssasriserssssssssesesssss s s basssessassentss e ssesssssesesssnssnesesesesssensens 5,600 3,429
Total culture and rECIEatION ,..vuieeeneiiereireriiiie i seesrerens e 108,100 111,796
PUBLIC SAFETY
BALATIES 11 crvirvcsiseririeise it ssc st st b bbbttt s s naene 496,000 464,878
Health INSUIANCE 1.evuvvrnsiinnserinerinriaerasersrsrenrsissssssresesesesserssseressesssossessesessesesssassssssans 60,000 62,553
Other payroll EXPenifires . i esereeesesseseessssssssrsersessssesessessssssesseses 166,400 159,033
Travel and training......ccoiceriienrimnirea s essesseseseessosessesassessreesssesoss 7,500 7,943
Vehicle and equipment MAINtENANCE. v..u.rveircievrsiseonseeseeesssserersrsrssssesssesssssosssssessessnns 19,400 : 19,507
Building Maitenance ... 200 2,800
Office EXPENAIUIES. uvviviviiviinsirsiesimir s ssesr st ess s ssesessesnnes 500 506.
G5 A0 O6luiusreinriierrrrirrnnenien s sereseresssessesrsnestosassnessesessantsssesessssessassssess 14,300 12,255
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(Continued)
Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 4

SCHEDULE OF REVENUELS, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES, Continued
PUBLIC SAFETY, Continued

Computer administration and MAINIENANCE. ...e i $ 500 $ 2,146
Utilities and teIePIONE o...cvricieinririiriinieiereerereesisessie e setessssessesessssessssssssssesesasesssesss 11,500 9,848
EqUIPMENt PUICHASE 1..cvriverrirernieriersrreeseiirarsasssssnrsessstsnsmssssssssossimsssssssssesssssossesseesesens 12,100 -
Police candidate NITINE ......oveeeeseninesmeriei e iressesessesessessssascssesssseseses 1,000 2,772
Uniforms and SUPPLES ....uveeiiierserenainnmmisnsnsnannnsssssssseessssss eeseseesessene 12,500 24,216
CrIMNE PIOVEIEION ..v1evirrereercrreseereressarseretssssnsessiassasetssssssestessestesossarssassessesseesessesosens 100 1,938
MESCELIANEOUS 11vvvvvesieserrnriiiiiiiiis st eb s sesss bbb saes bbb s snes 15,700 10,622

Total PUDLIC SALELY cvvvsvviirierisirniinireeesssinessssnr s essssesssesssssssssssssessansnns 817,700 781,017

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS '

Salaries...eensieres eteerie et et e e e aRe R e e R ea s e R eRrerea bR e b eReeRese st erereet et eneseenneneres 81,900 74,485

Health INSULANCE ..cveririeririiiressisnesrsrererssseressesssesesssesossessessersaseesseressesssssssasesesassessonss 13,900 13,125

Other payroll EXPENAITUIBS ... verreruseesireeimienmnisesesissssissessstsssssssssesesesssssnens 28,600 21,608

Travel and training. ..o seras s : 100 -

Building and grounds Maintenance ..........ourverrenniivernninnisesrenssssism e sssessseons 500 651

- Vehicle and equipment maintenance 12,000 6,147

——————FEquipment-purchase «mimmimmainmn LT T 34000 o

Equipment rental 20,000 11,808
Uniforms and SUPPIES....vevurimverrenemimieseni e rissmessseesesssesscsseresessssessssesassssessesseees ) 4,600 9,939

SHECt MAINIENANCE. 111t riereirnrresveresiessereesbersressess s seseseressesssoretstseresssesasssssetsssssrsenesssisses 39,300 21,487

Traffic signal MAINLENANCE .....cvurivrieeeirimirnerreiniri e essisesssrersenss 10,000 8,860
ProfesSIONAl TO8S .vuirnrerieirersirrrsreserseriesesere s sesssestssessasnsssessssbessesasessssssens 5,300 5,986

Office EXPENAITUIES. ev.tvivvirreririisnrressinisaesir st seresss e sseesse s secssssssesessesesssssses 100 33

GAS BIA 01l cteriverimreneee et ee e seb e bt e ssebsssbassses e seresesasessnsenssssenntasross 4,000 4,515

JHIIEIES covvvnriivsiiensensisiimiecsssiesmsaniiiessse e sessesisssssissssassssssssestesssssssesssesessesssssesans 38,300 40,132
IMUSCEIIANEOUS .vuvusssensiesisecsirmmsesiiesscsrmmtsesseressersins s sss st bassoesassecns 200 5,169

Total highways and streets....eniernnnnns e e bene 262.200 223,945

TOtal EXPENAIUIES 1uuvvsrisrissirrisieeiersereissrstsis st st essssessessenses 1,385,700 1.349.282

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ...ccimimmmrneimsimmenmromesmessmersseereesenns 13,200 104,862
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

GIAIES 1.ttt ab s et se st b s ses s rense oo rsesb s e st ererasssesssesanen 5,000 5228
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ......ooovviivriirerinisissessiiiniesesssssssssssssessssesessssssens $_ 18200 110,090
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ....cocvuivevererinrimmrissinsesssrsssesssisssesssrssees 741,521
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR.....oecinsverns s s e s RS R " $_851,611
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 5
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
_ TIF FUND
‘ For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
TAKES vvrvevrvrvreerserroernsrasseseonsessssnssastessesestanstesessntasesssesnsnsssnsessrasssnsyssssssssssssassesssasonsssrosarassansens $ 196,100 $ 274,865
TNVESHINIEIE INCOMIE vurvierererrireerrererinseeresseorearsssessestesasressentsessessesessersserssserissonentonssteressenerssssess 200 -
VIS CEIIAIIEOUS 1ivvvsrerrerrarersereriereereermsserenserssssinesssssssessessssestosase sessossrerensas fheberesesassesssesianerenes 100 -
TOLAl TEVEIIIES . .1 eveververeererreiesrersesvesnereseerserertesrerbeessstvsesbeneasssonnsbensstsnnstsssenssrsnserassensanes 196.400 274,865
EXPENDITURES
SUIPIUS FUNAS coovviviiriiiiiiiii bbb s et enssenns 93,600 136,952
PrOLESSIONAL £EES ... eirvrireriverriessiriesessonseserasres s erraers s i b st b bbb et se s b ebensnsasstsasneasotorenssneren 16,700 25,630
IVISCEILANEOUS. 11eveverrerisrainerareessssasssessesaisesesesseesnitessesssrasasassessossssnresarsssesssrensoressorsnsssassnsnins 1,000 9,601
Total eXPERAHUIES cvoviriiiriirsii it sressseste et seres s ensesvesssessesasens 111.300 172,183
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .......ccoocooiiieinririveininereseseeerssesessssssesssesiorisesssreseseens $__85.100 102,682
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ....cooviiesiriiverieerisnesesssasssossersssessaessssssrssees 95,747
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $_198.429
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 6
SCHEDULE OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP)
WATER UTILITY FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020
Original and
Fina] Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
MELEIE WALEE SAIES....0cvrivrerrereersererrsrresiosisisiessionssssss st sssesssssssesossessesssasessssesesssssssseesasns $1,055,100 $ 994,605
CONNECLION TEES 1.1vtrvsreusereensereseressrnaneresesstrisstreesensterssssssessbesessesessestsssassssesasesssssssenssssesosns 10,000 6,465
PENAIY TOVEIUE 1evtiireinrinrenieeririenni e st bes et st ssss e sese et ses b sess e st sessesessenssesesesssesons 14,700 12,615
WALET DOIIC FEVEIMUE c1vvvierririsurierereriassissnisessesssrossivrerersresssoneresssenesssossssseresssesssesesenssosssenssen 154,000 155,369
MISCEIIANEOUS. .. .vevrvcrrrersinrenrsriersiieesisiesseresesiresressesssistesissesssissossersssasssrsssessesseassssssesessses 500 5.534
Total OPErating IBVEIUES uuuuiusuivsiaruseivrseesisneesmesssssismsinsssmmssssssssmesssnesssensssssisessens 1,234,300 1,174,588
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water PUIChased... i s e sens 620,000 405,783
Salaries, taxes and DENELIES ....vvvvvrreeeisreisre e sesessssesssesesese serasenessesssenesans 229,900 196,527
Materials and SUPPLES ..o veviiisinmieeiiiiri i nierersisisss s stsssebsesessssessessssssesesanses 34,500 28,579
GAS AN Ol viveverririsserineserrinarsrieree s aan bt erersr st s rabeb e s st bsscremasetosesstesetesansssseseseseanses 6,200 4,692
Office SuPPLIES aNd BXPOISE.cu.irruriririeiiiesrisestisemrinsees e st e nssesens 11,300 7,571
Insurance - 13,542
Ordinance codification 4,500 2,250
Audit fees 6,000 5,513
Professional fees 58,300 33,688
Computer maintenance 2,100 2,233
S Uniforms oemevesvmrs vrsvesereressess - 600~ 1,281 -
TestNG..cvvsrriverrrerrennrrerneas 2,500 3,973
Utilities and telephone 10,400 7,019
DIUES ..ottt st s bbb sb s e bbb ebs s a e b b e s bt e b e st e ns s Rt b ras 700 736
Publications and SUDSCIIPLIONS ......cvueerueciiiiiiissiinieenissiessesessesnsesesseessssesssssisssesmsesssassrens 500 90
Repairs and MAIMIBNANCE .....eerierreeereinirerieeeresieiesssesssenesssesssessestesssessessessessessossssssesessen 52,000 73,403
DIUZ SCIEENING (11viunviessiiriiisnitiieni st ress s et es s s be e s e ns s onae e entsesenrans 400 268
MIISCELIANBOUS .11 cvsitiesernrseraneeneeissariese s rseseersesmesssse s s o sessesss s s etnessesse st n st anet et esesnsasnens 8.200 6,824
Total OPEIAtiNG BXPENSES 1vverrerererrsseressrsesemmernerinssiasssessssssisiissessssasssssssisessessssenens 1,048,100 793,972
Income (105s) frOMm OPEIAtIONS ..c.veviviviiriririnerimeries it serseseessene et eee 186.200 380,616
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INVESTNENT INCOMIS 111vvirieesrersisirirerreirnssissise e reresenssessas s esssresenstsssnsessenenssaseseseseserssnsensrenns 2,200 1,656
INEEIESE EXPEMSE ..uurvuivermsitiriisiierinissiissesstrnt st ser st et ss bbbt sras s senr st ( __43.700) (_.43.573)
Total nonoperating TeVenUESs (EXPENSES) cuurvrruerererrierirmereserearsrssesestssssersssisssessasssesas (__41.500) (__41917)
Change in net position, bUudEtary DASIS ..o sesessesersesersnens $_ 144,700 338,699
Reconciliation to statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
Depreciation and amortization ... as—s—on.s ¢ 87,711)
Net position at begiining Of YOI ....vviieririerinirireiierise e s sesssess s eeresssseessenss 2,057,214
Net position at €n1d OF YEaI ... s s ress s $2,308,202
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 7
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP)
SEWER UTILITY FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES .
SEWEL SEIVICE vuverrveemrinsernenienennsnnens et et e R R et Rebesa s s R eRe R e R et besenabeRs $ 895,000 $ 851,920
CONNECHION TEES...vivivuiisirisriesseriseimeseseisrrsisesistsrsses e stbecseren st sssst s sessesaersssssassssassssnsssssesens 500 150
Penalty TEVEIIUS ...cvuir ittt sssiss s sssses s asenssssamsessssssssssse s ssesssssseces 14,700 13,402
TOtal OPEIatiNg FEVEIUES c.oviverrrrersersriersruomeriessssssarismsssersssissseresressessssessssrosesssssassosesss 910.200 865.472
OPERATING EXPENSES \
SEWEL FlOW CHAIZES .vuererverrerveeeeiireaere e e s s ssrobsseb s ssbsnssbessasaessatensanes 390,000 363,220
Salaries, taxes and DENETILS vv.vve i seesseessrssessoses 229,000 191,111
Materials And SUPPLES...vwererireererrsmrerersin et sessssrernirsesrssssseesssessssressesssssos 12,500 8,963
Office SUPPLIES BN EXPENISC...vieevieiirnierirenisiriiinsmisiterenessererissssssssssssesisssssssrsesesssrssssrens 11,700 6,491
GASOUNE A1 Ol.svvrirerrrerrnnnisrserieinrssersrisieieemseistos e rsserssssrerseserssessssesssesns 6,200 4,762
INSUTAIICE 11vvvsnirsvsersaensrarinssoonsrensesnesssssssressorsnsenrssessessssssessensssstesstorenssvessonmenssaerssessonsessssansones - 9,937
Ordinance COAIICALION vvveerrrirrrrrreriir e erereres st sesretebanssenessssssrs 4,500 2,250
AUAIE TEES 11vevereneerarereirioreresrisessereseririenssstsrsecesessosssestasosssesssesis orosssssossssssrssratessosssnsrersesosasens 6,000 5,513
PrOfESSI0NA] £, veeiireiteererrir e tirress e rrree e e s e snss s s avrsb e ebeaesaebs sbessebastsasasesrarssnesresaeresrons 39,500 40,763
COMPULET TNATIBIIATICE 1v1vavererrrvereassererersmrssssssessasssimssessinssssssssssesssssasssasssssesssosonsstossmorsiorases 3,600 2,641
TUTHTOIIIIS 1vivretesnerennsreseesessessernssestossessernssssossstnestssarasssssenessesessentsuessshassshanssssessssasesueseesensesrens 600 1,246
500 1,348
- -17,200 26,462 -
400 250
Publications and subscriptions : ' 500 90
Repairs and MAIIBIAICE ...ivvweirsrasrernrresseniesimnmneessmsrstrnssoss s vsresssssess 99,900 103,843
DIUZ SCIBEIUNE cuvrireverserereseresssvrsesissresistseissessesssssmsnnsssresssssssssasssorsssssasersesssssssnresssessssssnsssssas 400 268
MISCEHANEOUS. c1.evrvsresssrnssenisssorsamiersussersrrasissassessensseretsessrsessssarssasiasiarssssssnsssssassammesasesssensnon 7.700 1,437
Total OPErating BXPENSES ..overerrerrerrassrreasresssresssissesssssssseresiessssssssasarsessssssrsssssmsrsreas 830,200 770,595
Income (loss) from OPEIationS......vuewusieriinii e 80,000 94,877
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
TOVESLMENE INCOIMIE 11urseerrsrerrerseriermenssrennsseinesersassseeniissrmssesiosssesissarsesesessassressessssosesnens rererrees 500 771
TIEEIESE (SXPOIISE) vuvvrrersresreressecseurensessersensessssersessemressssssssssssssssinstsesassssssssnssssessssesassssasses ( 7.500) ( 8.423)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES) v vrrrresrirresessmsmerisssssssssersssarssrssstsssssessssnsas ( 7.000) ( 7.652)
Change in net position, bud@etary DasiS......emimirrmrnmeneresns $__ 73,000 87,225
Reconciliation to statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
Depreciation and amortization ... e, ( 164,944)
Net position at DegIinNIng OF YEAT ....vvuirerireriievmmrermmessisierismsee v 3,632,121
Net position at e0d Of YEAL ...t e ssress s $3.554,402
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 8
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
April 30,2020
Motor Fuel Capital Total
Tax Improvement 2020
ASSETS
Cash and cash equIValENTS.........ceererivereseermessssnos e $ 198,710 $ 9,766 $ 208,476
Receivable:

OHIET vttt rererrese vt r et re s e s oo bbb res b st ebsasersssnnns 10,941 - 10,941
TOTAL ASSETS $_209,651 $_9,766 $_219.417
Liabilities and Fund Balances
LIABILITIES ...t evrriieierreesinisissserssresssssersssessssssssssesssssssssesssreens $ - $ - $ -
FUND BALANCES

RESIEICIEM. cuveririririarreriineeriree i eebererserenssressessetssassessessessesessesessesnssenss 209,651 - 209,651
ASSIZNEA ..o s - 9.766 9,766

Total fund DAIANCE ...uvevvvisiirmneiireree e e e senerene 209,651 9,766 219.417

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $.209,651 $___ 9766 $_219.417
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 9
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30,2020

Motor Fuel Capital Total
Tax Improvement 2020
REVENULS
INterBOVEINMENLAL...evirserisiarsrrerenersrreinsireasosarerieisssssssessssesessresesessarerens $ 136,130 $ - $ 136,130
INtELeSt INCOMB .1eurivercrrnrersarne e iss s rtesssses s s isses e snseens 4.218 19 4.237
"TOTAL REVENUES ... sesarosens 140,348 19 140,367
EXPENDITURES
Current operation; ‘
Highway and Sreets .....ceeermimeiemmmsissss e 20,322 - 20,322
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES : " 120,026 19 120,045
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING.......... bt e b arne 89,625 9,747 99,372
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $_209,651 $5___9.766 $_219417
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Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden

LORI K. MILOSEVICH, C.PA., C.FE. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TERRI L. PHELPS, C.P.A.

JAMES ©. M 901 South Second Street
- RICHARD W. OGDEN, C.P.A. Springfield, llinois 62704
217/528-8473
Fax 217/528-8506

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With
Subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the IMlinois
Tax Inerement Redevelopment Allocation Act

To the President and Board of Trustees
Village of Rochester, Illinois

We have audited the balance sheet of the Incremental Tax Fund of the Village of Rochester, Illinois as of April 30,
2020, and the related statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the year then ended, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 8, 2021, The financial statements present only the Incremental Tax
Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial position and results of operations and the cash flows of the

proprietary fund types of the Village of Rochester, Illinois in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

—— We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted-in the United-States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement,

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the Village of Rochester, Illinois is the
responsibility of the Village of Rochester, Illinois’ management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the Village of Rochester,
Ilinois® compliance with Subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 (q) of the Illinois Tax Increment
Redevelopment Allocation Act. However, the objective of our audit of the financial statements was not to provide
an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

However, the results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance with Subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3
(65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3(q)) of the Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, State of Illinois Department of Revenue, and to

taxing districts overlapping the Village of Rochester, Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Project Areas
adininistered by the Village of Rochester, Illinois and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

than these specified partieg.
s o ng%@/w

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, linois

March 8, 2021
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 10
ASSESSED VALUATIONS, RATES, EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
Tax Years 2019, 2018 and 2017

2019 2018 2017
ASSESSED VALUATION............ sessersasasssnesenasnansnse $89.491,493 $89,237,317 $88,774,058
TAX RATES
General COLPOLALE......orvirimrierereresarmrerernrsssesnesesssnneens 0.1687 0.1682 0.1787
S0CIAL SECULILY c.vvverisierirereserericrenmiieneieeereesenscsesnsessersieiens 0.0842 0.0532 0.0730
INSULANCE ovrriiiririricinneircentnesee et sr e sessenens 0.0740 0.0755 0.0637
Police Protection . .cucvireveeineresinimienioreeinienesnsnsesnens 0.0537 0.0771 0.0564
Audit..coreirennnn, reeerer et s s e ashe s b e bt ns 0.0178 0.0175 0.0129
0.3984 0.3915 0.3847
TAX EXTENSIONS
General COTPOTALE. .evrrrerererierrseresveressersesnsssnesssarasessseresesnas $ 150972 $ 150,097 $ 158,639
SOCIAL SECULILY 1evverrererririenreniinenierenresirinrenseresrernseisesersesenns 75,352 47,474 64,805
INSULANCE cvvevveereirircreriieniresseenrereseeseneessennesesesssereessessaessenens 606,224 67,374 56,549
POlice ProteCtion .ivveinreiireiieiisireeiseresssreseessnsiessesseosecosseens 48,057 68,802 50,069
AU ceseveveiereerririrrriereer e see s tsressnss e sasssanss 15.929 15,617 11,452
" Total extended §_ 356534 $_ 349364 $_ 341514
Total COLECIEM .rrereiririeririenieireris s seens $__ 346899 $__ 338504
Percentage collected....ouimiiiieeieniicneinerenen, 99.29% 99.11%
Collection of Village share of road and bridge taX...........uuea. $___ 28457 $__ 28,129
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Village of Rochester, Illinois Schedule 11
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

April 30, 2020
ASSESSED VALUATION - 2019 TAX LEVY wiucccennetsennesseseeresrssssssessassonsasessssasassesassessssnes $89,491,493
STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION (8.625% OF VALUATION) ..cccevuvenrveresnsnsesenens $ 7,718,641
Total debt
General obligation (alternative revenue source) bonds.......cocvvrivvuevennn. $1,130,000
Water tower N0te Payable ... 24,854
Backhoe note payable ... 29,644
Pump station note payable ... 284.267
1,468,765
Less alternate revenue source Donds .o ( 1,130,000) 338,765
TOTAL LEGAL DEBT MARGIN..ccccoususnennisscssarseassnsersssasasasssassassasssssssasesasessosesssssnsssesaasass $7.379.876
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